MISSION
It is our mission to deliver quality healthcare to the residents of and visitors to BigBearValley through the most effective use of available resources.
VISION
To be the premier provider of emergency medical and healthcare services in our BigBearValley.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA
Wednesday, January 10, 2018 @ 1:00 p.m. — Hospital Conference Room
41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315
(Closed Session will be held upon adjournment of Open Session as noted below. Open Session will reconvene @
approximately 3:00 p.m. —Hospital Conference Room 41870 Garstin Drive,
Big Bear Lake, CA 92315)

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on this agenda are on file in the Chief Executive Officer’s Office
and are available for public inspection or purchase at 10 cents per page with advance written notice. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and
Government Code Section 54954.2, if you need special assistance to participate in a District meeting or other services offered by the District, please contact
Administration (909) 878-8214. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the District staff in assuring that
reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS (SB 343)
-- Any public record, relating to an open session agenda item, that is distributed within 72 hours prior to the meeting is available for public inspection at the public
counter located in the Administration Office, located at 41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315. For questions regarding any agenda item, contact
Administration at (909) 878-8214.

OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER Rob Robbins, President

2. PUBLIC FORUM FOR CLOSED SESSION
This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on Closed Session items.
(Government Code Section 54954.3, there will be a three (3) minute limit per speaker. Any report or data required at this time
must be requested in writing, signed and turned in to Administration. Please state your name and city of residence.)

3. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION*
CLOSED SESSION

1. CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT/QUALITY IMPROVEMENT: *Pursuant to Health & Safety Code
Section 32155
(1) Chief of Staff Report

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: *Government Section Code: 54957.6:
Negotiator(s): Mike Sarrao, Esq.
(1) Continuing Union Negotiations with: OPEIU

3. HOSPITAL QUALITY/RISK/COMPLIANCE REPORTS: *Pursuant to Health & Safety Code
Section 32155
(1) Risk/Compliance Management Report
(2) QI Management Report

4. TRADE SECRETS: Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 32106, and Civil Code Section
3426.1
(1) Charles Ananian, DPM Podiatrist Clinic Service Agreement (Anticipated disclosure 1/10/18)

OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER Rob Raobbins, President

2. ROLL CALL Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant



3. FLAG SALUTE
4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA*
5. RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION Rob Robbins, President

6. PUBLIC FORUM FOR OPEN SESSION
This is the opportunity for persons to speak on items of interest to the public within subject matter jurisdiction of the District,
but which are not on the agenda. Any person may, in addition to this public forum, address the Board regarding any item listed
on the Board agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of Directors. (Government Code Section 54954.3,
there will be a three (3) minute limit per speaker. Any report or data required at this time must be requested in writing,
signed and turned in to Administration. Please state your name and city of residence.)

PUBLIC RESPONSE IS ENCOURAGED AFTER MOTION, SECOND AND
PRIOR TO VOTE ON ANY ACTION ITEM

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

8. INFORMATION REPORTS
A. Foundation Report Holly Elmer, Foundation President

B. Auxiliary Report Gail Dick, Auxiliary President

9. CONSENT AGENDA*

Notice to the Public:

Background information has been provided to the Board on all matters listed under the Consent Agenda, and the items are
considered to be routine by the Board. All items under the Consent Agenda are normally approved by one (1) motion. If
discussion is requested by any Board Member on any item; that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda if separate
action other than that as stated is required.

A. December 06, 2017 Special Board of Directors Meeting Minutes: Shelly Egerer, Executive
Assistant
December 13, 2017 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes: Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant
January 02, 2018 Special Board of Directors Meeting Minutes: Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant
December 2017 Planning & Facilities Report: Michael Mursick, Plant Director
December 2017 Human Resource Report: Erin Wilson, Human Resource Director
December 2017 Infection Control Report: Heather Loose, Infection Preventionist
Policies and Procedures:
(1) Identity Theft
(2) Patient Registration
(3) Patient Transfer
(4) Policy Review and Approval Process
(5) Employee Injury & Blood/Body Fluid Exposure
H. Board of Directors; Committee Meeting Minutes:
(1) December 04, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

OETMOUOw

10. OLD BUSINESS*
e None

11. NEW BUSINESS*
A. Discussion and Potential Approval of the June 30, 2017 Fiscal Year End Audited Financial
Statements: Presented by Jerrel Tucker w/JWT & Associates LLP



B. Discussion and Potential Approval of the Charles Ananian, DPM Podiatrist Clinic Service
Agreement

C. Discussion and Potential Approval of the Installation of a Marta Bench at Bear VValley Community
Healthcare District Parking Area

D. Discussion and Potential Approval to the Board of Directors QHR Critical Access Hospital and
Life Safety Mock Survey: Travel Expenses Not to Exceed $2,000.00 per Consultant

E. Discussion and Potential Approval of Employees Performance Based Evaluations
F. Discussion and Update on the 340B Pharmacy Program

G. Discussion and Potential Approval of the Following Resolutions to Form Committees as Listed and
Assign Committee Members:
(1) Resolution # 18-452 Information Technology Committee
(2) Resolution #18-453 Hospital Affiliation Committee

12. ACTION ITEMS*
A.  Acceptance of OHR Report
Ron Vigus, Regional VP QHR
(1) January 2018 QHR Report
(2) IT Assessment

B. Acceptance of CNO Report
Kerri Jex, Chief Nursing Officer
(1) December 2017 CNO Report

C. Acceptance of the CEO Report
John Friel, Chief Executive Officer
(1) December 2017 CEO Report
(2) Strategic Plan Update
(3) Organizational Chart

D. Acceptance of the Finance Report & CFO Report
Garth Hamblin, Chief Financial Officer
(1) November 2017 Financials
(2) December 2017 CFO Report

13. ADJOURNMENT™* * Denotes Possible Action Items



PRESENT:

ABSENT:
STAFF:

COMMUNITY
MEMBERS:

BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
SPECIAL BUSINESS BOARD MEETING MINUTES
41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, Ca. 92315

December 06, 2017
Donna Nicely, President Barbara Willey, Treasurer
Rob Robbins, 1% Vice President John Friel, CEO
Jack Roberts, 2™ Vice President Shelly Egerer, Exec. Assistant

Gail McCarthy, Secretary
None

Kerri Jex Michael Mursick Garth Hamblin

None

OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER:
President Nicely called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

2. ROLLCALL:

Donna Nicely, Rob Robbins, Gail McCarthy, Jack Roberts, and Barbara Willey were

present. Also present was John Friel, CEO and Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant.

3. FLAG SALUTE:
Board Member Robbins led the flag salute all present participated.

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

President Nicely motioned to adopt the agenda as presented. Second by Board
Member Roberts to adopt the agenda as presented. President Nicely called for the

vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.
o Board Member Robbins- yes
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Board Member Willey
President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

CLOSED SESSION

5. PUBLIC FORUM FOR CLOSSED SESSION:
President Nicely opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Closed Session items
at 12:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Nicely closed Public
Forum for Closed Session at 12:01 p.m.

6. ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION:
President Nicely called for a motion to adjourn to Closed Session at 1:01 p.m. Motion
by Board Member Roberts to adjourn to Closed Session. Second by Board Member
McCarthy to adjourn to Closed Session. President Nicely called for a vote. A vote in
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favor of the motion was 5/0.

o Board Member Robbins- yes
Board Member Willey
President Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes
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RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

. CALL TO ORDER:

President Nicely opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session items
at 1:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Nicely closed Public
Forum for Open Session at 1:01 p.m.

. RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION:
President Nicely reported no action was taken in Closed Session.

. PUBLIC FORUM FOR OPEN SESSION

President Nicely opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session items
at 1:01 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Nicely closed Public
Forum for Open Session at 1:01 p.m.

. DIRECTORS COMMENTS:
e None

. OLD BUSINESS:
¢ None

. NEW BUSINESS:

o None

. ADJOURNMENT
President Nicely called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:01 p.m. Motion by
Board Member McCarthy to adjourn. Second by Board Member Roberts to adjourn.
President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was unanimously
approved 5/0.

o Board Member Nicely- yes
Board Member Willey
President Robbins - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes
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BEAR YALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BUSINESS BOARD MEETING MINUTES
41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, Ca. 92315
December 13, 2017

PRESENT: Donna Nicély, President - Barbara Willey, Treasurer
Rob Robbins, 1% Vice President John Friel, CEO
Jack Roberts, 2™ Vice President Shelly Egerer, Ex. Assist.

Gail McCarthy, Secretary

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Garth Hamblin Mary Norman Kerri Jex
Sheri Mursick Steven Knapik, DO Erin Wilson
OTHER: Holly Elmer, Foundation Ron Vigus, VP

Gail Dick, Auxiliary

COMMUNITY
MEMBERS: None

OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER:
President Nicely called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION

1. PUBLIC FORUM FOR CLOSED SESSION:
President Nicely opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Closed Session
items at 1:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment. President Nicely closed
Public Forum for Closed Session at 1:00 p.m.

2. ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION:
President Nicely motioned to adjourn to Closed Session at 1:00 p.m. Second by
Board Member Willey to adjourn to Closed Session. President Nicely called for a
vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

Board Member Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey - yes

President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - yes

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER:
President Nicely called the meeting to Open Session at 3:00 p.m,




2. ROLL CALL: _
Donna Nicely, Rob Robbins, Jack Roberts, Barbara Willey and Gail McCarthy were
present. Also present were John Friel, CEO and Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant.

3. FLAGSALUTE:
Board Member Roberts led the flag salute all present participated,

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:
President Nicely called for a motion to adopt the agenda as presented. Motion by
Board Member Willey to adopt the agenda as presented. Second by Board Member
Roberts to adopt the agenda as presented. President Nicely called for the vote. A vote
in favor of the motion was 5/0.

Board Member Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey - yes
President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

5. RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION:
President Nicely reported that the following action was taken in Closed Session:
The following reports were approved.

o Chief of Staff Report:

Request for Initial Appointment: .

o Robert Acquarelli, MD - Renaissance Radiology
o Gregory Timm, MD - Renaissance Radiology

o Gurmanjot Samra, MD - Tele-Psychiatry

o Lauren Brown-Berchtold, MD - Internal Medicine

Request for Reappointment:

o Mark Beller, MD - Renaissance Radiology

o Dianna Chooljian, MD - Renaissance Radiology

o Amanda Holden, MD - Emergency Medicine

o Steven Groke, MD - Emergency Medicine

o Christopher Fagan, MD - Emergency Medicine/Family Medicine
o Sheila Thomas, NP - Family Medicine

Risk Report

QI Report

CFO Evaluation

President Nicely called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

Board Member Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey - yes
Prestdent Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy-yes
Board Member Roberts - yes




6. PUBLIC FORUM FOR OPEN SESSION:
President Nicely opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session items at
3:08 p.m. Hearing no request to make Public Comment. President Nicely closed Public
Forum for Open Session at 3:08 p.m.

7. DIRECTORS COMMENTS

Board Member Willey attended the Annual Auxiliary Mall in the Hall and bought
several items, Also attended the BVCHD Employee Christmas Party and had a good
time.

President Nicely stated that nursing did a great job on the CDPH Annual Survey and
asked that Ms. Jex inform Kathleen Yerratt of the great job done. Also thanked the
Auxiliary for the $20,000 donation to the SNF,

Board Member McCarthy stated that she also congratulates staff on the Annual
Survey, and is very proud of our staff. :

8. INFORMATION REPORTS:

A,

Foundation Report:

¢  Ms. Elmer reported the following:

Christmas Party was wonderful.

Dec. 12 Foundation Meeting was conducted.

Foundation Bylaws are still being reviewed.

Supporting Health Fair for Petting Zoo $800.00.

Raised $6,100.000 from the end of the year letters that were sent.
Donor Recognition potentially scheduled for early March 2018.

O 0O 0o 000

B. Auxiliary Report:

* Ms. Dick reported the following:
o Thanked the Board for their support in last year’s fund raisers.
o When the ski slopes open, they will be working the ER on weekends.

9. CONSENT AGENDA:

A.

2REPOW

November 08, 2017 Board of Directors Meetmg Minutes: Shelly Egerer, Executive
Assistant

November 2017 Planning& Facilities Report: Michael Mursick, Plant Manager
Quarter 3, Fire Life/Safety Report: Michael Mursick, Plant Manager

November 2017 Human Resource Report: Erin ' Wilson, Human Resource Director
November 2017 Infection Control Report: Heather Loose, Infection Preventionist
Policies and Procedures:

(1) SNF

(2) Acute

(3) Laboratory

Board of Directors; Committee Meeting Minutes:

(1) October 26, 2017 Planning & Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

(2) November 06, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

President Nicely motioned to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. Second by Board
Member Robbins to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. President Nicely called
for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.




Board Member Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

10. OLD BUSINESS:
A. Discussion and Potential Approval of Health Benefits for the Board of Director’s:
¢ Board Member Roberts stated that he asked that this item to be on the agenda at
- last month Board Meeting and the item was tabled. Board Member Roberts stated

that there are special districts that provide health benefits and feels this is a good
practice and a way to also get community members to run for the Board.

e Mr. Friel stated that ACHD was contacted and that the Board can choose to offer
the health benefits.

Board Member Roberts motioned to approve medical benefits for the Board of Directors at
the same rate as the employees and the base plan. Second by Board Member Robbins to
approve medical benefits for the Board of Directors at the same rate as the employees and
the base plan. President Nicely called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

s Board Member Robbins - yes

e Board Member Willey - yes

e President Nicely - yes

¢ Board Member McCarthy-yes

¢ Board Member Roberts— yes
11. NEW BUSINESS*

A. Discussion and Potential Approval of the Following Contracts:
(1) Center for Oral Health: Skilled Nursing Facility Dental Services
(2) Michael Norman, DO: Respiratory Therapy Director Service Agreement

President Nicely motioned to approve the Center for Oral Health SNF Agreement and
Michael Norman, DO Respiratory Therapy Director Service Agreement as presented.
Second by Board Member McCarthy to approve the Center for Oral Health SNF
Agreement and Michael Norman, DO Respiratory Therapy Director Service Agreement as
presented. President Nicely called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.
Board Member Robbins - yes '

Board Member Willey- yes

President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - yes

B. Discussion and Potential Approval of the 2017 Cost Report:
e Mr. Hamblin asked that the Board of Directors authorize John Friel, CEO to sign
the Medicare Cost Report. WIPFLI completed the cost report and David Perry with
QHR reviewed the report,




President Nicely motioned to approve John Friel, CEO authorization to sign the 2017 Cost
Report. Second by Board Member Willey to approve John Friel, CEO authorization to sign
the 2017 Cost Report. President Nicely called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion
was 5/0. '

Board Member Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes

President Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

‘Board Member Roberts - yes

C. Discussion and Potential Recommendation to the Board of Directors QHR IT
Assessment: Travel Expenses Not to Exceed $2,000.00:
» President Nicely asked for clarification on what is covered under “travel expenses”,
* Mr. Hamblin stated that the travel expenses are to include air fare, food, rental cars
and hotel expenses.

President Nicely motioned to approve the QHR IT Assessment Travel Expenses not to
exceed $2,000.00. Second by Board Member Willey to approve the QHR IT Assessment
Travel Expenses not to exceed $2,000.00. President Nicely called for the vote. A vote in favor
of the motion was 5/0.

¢ Board Member Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
President Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

Board Member Willey announced that this is her last Board Meeting with the Hospital; a
formal letter of resignation will be provided to Administration. Board Member Willey
stated that this last year has been a great year for the Hospital and has enjoyed being a
part of the hospital.

D. Discussion and Potential Approval of Bear Valley Community Healthcare District
Election of Officers:
(1) President:

President Nicely motioned to approve Rob Robbins as the Board President. Second by
Board Member Willey to approve Rob Robbins as the Board President. President Nicely
called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.
e Board Member Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
President Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

¢ Board Member Robbins thanked his colleagues for having trust in him to be the
Board of Directors President and thanked Board Member Nicely for her three-
year term.

(2) 1* Vice President:




Board Member Robbins motioned to approve Board Member McCarthy as 1% Vice
President. Second by Board Member Nicely to approve Board Member McCarthy as 1%
Vice President. President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

(3)

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - ves
Board Member Roberts - yes

2™ Vice President:

President Robbins motioned to approve Board Member Roberts as 2™ Vice President.
Second by Board Member Willey to approve Board Member Roberts as 2" Vice President.
President Robbins called for the vote, A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

(4)

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

Secretary:
» President Robbins stated that due to Board Member Willey’s resignation the
Board Secretary Position would be filled at a later date.

Board Member McCarthy motioned to approve the Board Secretary position to be filled at
a later date. Second by President Robbins to approve the Board Secretary position to be
filled at a later date. President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was

5/0.

&)

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

Treasurer

President Robbins motioned to approve Board Member Nicely as the Board Treasurer,
Second by Board Member McCarthy to approve Board Member Nicely as the Board
Treasurer. President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

E. Discussion and Potential Approval of Bear Valley Community Healthcare
District Committee Members:

(1)

Planning & Facilities Committee Meeting




(2) . Finance Committee Meeting (Treasurer and Committee Member):
' * Board Member Roberts asked that IT Assessment Committee be on the next
Board Agenda.

» President Robbins stated that he would like an Adhoc Committee for Hospital
Affiliation and a QI/Safety Committee be placed on the January Board
Meeting,

(3) Human Resource Committee Meeting:

Board Member Nicely motioned to approve Board Member McCarthy as Chair of Human

Resource with the committee having one member to be assigned, Board Member Roberts is

the chair of the Planning & Facilities Committee, President Robbins is the 2™ member of

the Planning & Facilities Committee and Board Member Nicely is the chair of the Finance

Committee with one member to be assigned at a later date. Second by President Robbins

to approve Board Member McCarthy as Chair of Human Resource with the committee

having one member to be assigned, Board Member Roberts is the chair of the Planning &

Facilities Committee, President Robbins is the 2"! member of the Planning & Facilities

Committee and Board Member Nicely is the chair of the Finance Committee with one

member to be assigned at a later date President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in
favor of the motion was 4/1. '

' » President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes

Board Member Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - no

12. ACTION ITEMS*
:A. Quorum Health Resource Report:
(1) December 2017 QHR Report:
e Mr. Vigus reported the following
o QHR Board minutes contained very valuable in-site.
o Tomi Hagan has committed to continue to have support via email with
. Compliance.

President Robbins called for a motion to approve the QHR Report as presented. Motion by
Board Member Willey to approve the QHR Report. Second by Board Member McCarthy
to approve the QHR Report as presented. Board member Robbins called for the vote. A
vote in favor of the motion was 5/0.

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes

Board Member Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - yes

B. CNO Report:
(1) November 2017 CNO Report:
* Ms. Jex provided the following information:
o Survey was successful; there are 696 pages in new regulations.
o ER census is down due to lack of snow.
o Staff is decreased according to the work-load.
o Acute, travel RN was released of duties and are currently trying to fill that
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position. Positions are posted on website, the District hiring board and
word of mouth.

o $250,000 is in Capital Budget to upgrade the ER; no OSHPD work to be
done.

© SNF has 19 patients and there is a waiting list,

o Employee morale in the Dietary Department is down and will be working
with the manager to bring morale up; the new manager is holding the staff
accountable on workloads, staff fecls there is a disparity in pay, and they
are adjusting to new manager and they feel unappreciated.

o Case Manager is working with hospitals to provide follow up discharge and
try to get patients in our hospital. Off site visits are scheduled for next year,

Board Member Roberts motioned to approve the CNO Report as presented. Second by
Board Member McCarthy to approve the CNO Report as presented., President Robbms
called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 5/0. :
e President Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

C. Acceptance of the CEQ Report:
(1) November 2017 CEO Report:
¢ Mr. Friel reported the following information:
o The Mammo unit is reinstated as of this moming. Scheduling patients
beginning Monday.
o Board Self-Assessment website/email address will be sent to the full
Board. The District Bylaws state that the assessment will be completed no
later than February 2018.
¢ Board Member Roberts stated that he was at the Rotary Meeting and Mr. Fnel
~ did a great job and a wonderful presentation.

(2) Strategic Plan Update:

e Mr. Friel stated that the Strategic Plan has been updated and provided to the

Board and the Board of Directors would receive a quarterly report.
o Studer Group is on hold until Union Negotiations are completed.

¢ Board Member Roberts requested follow up on visiting hospitals that the
architects completed; this needs to be scheduled right away

o The full Board asked that target dates need to be included in the Strategic Plan
and to please bring back to the Board at the January 2018 meeting.

Board Member Roberts motioned to approve the CEOQ Report and Strategic Plan as
presented. Second by Board Member Willey to approve the CEO Report and Strategic
Plan as presented. President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor was unanimously
approved 5/0.

¢ President Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes




D. Acceptance of the Finance Report:
(1) October 2017 Financials:
» Mr. Hamblin reported the following information:
o Revenue is over budget.
Expenses are lower than budget.
Swing and Acute are less then what was budgeted.
ER over budget.
Expenses are 4% higher due to temporary staff, and training staff,
Purchased service up due to more patients at the Dental Clinic.
AR days are 67,
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(2) CFO Report:
e Mr. Hamblin reported the following information:

o Healthcare Reform is still unknown and is on the back burner.

o Nationwide Saline Solution Shortage is related to the hurricanes in Puerto
Rico. Had to purchase solution at $99 per case when it was being
purchased at $30 per case. Cameron is diligently working towards
obtaining the solution.

o Trubridge weekly meetings continuing,

Board Member Robbins called for a motion to approve the October 2017 Finance Report
and the CFO Report as presented. Motion by Board Member Willey to approve the
October 2017 Finance Report and the CFO Report as presented. Second by Board Member
McCarthy to approve the October 2017 Finance Report and the CFO Report as presented.
President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor was unanimously approved 5/0.

» President Robbins - yes
Board Member Willey- yes
Board Member Nicely - yes
Board Member McCarthy - yes
Board Member Roberts - yes

13. ADJOURNMENT:
Board Member Nicely motioned to adjourn the meeting at 4:25 p.m. Second by Board
Member Willey to adjourn. President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the
motion was unanimously approved 5/0.

President Robbins - yes

Board Member Willey- yes

Board Member Nicely - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - yes




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
SPECIAL BUSINESS BOARD MEETING MINUTES
41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, Ca. 92315
January 02, 2018

PRESENT: Rob Robbins, President Donna Nicely, Treasurer
Gail McCarthy, 1* Vice President  John Friel, CEQ
Jack Roberts, 2™ Vice President Shelly Egerer, Exec. Assistant

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Kerri Jex Garth Hamblin Erin Wilson
OTHER: Mike Sarrao, Legal Counsel

COMMUNITY

MEMBERS: None

OPEN SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER:
President Robbins called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

2. ROLLCALL:
Rob Robbins, Gail McCarthy, Jack Roberts, and Donna Nicely were present.
Also present was John Friel, CEO and Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant.

3. FLAG SALUTE:
Board Member Roberts led the flag salute all present participated.

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

President Robbins called for a motion to adopt the agenda as presented. Motion by
Board Member Nicely to adopt the agenda as presented. Second by Board Member
McCarthy to adopt the agenda as presented. President Robbins called for the vote, A
vote in favor of the motion was 4/0.

o Board Member Nicely- yes .

o President Robbins - yes

o Board Member McCarthy - yes

o Board Member Roberts - yes

CLOSED SESSION

5. PUBLIC FORUM FOR CLOSSED SESSION:
President Robbins opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Closed Session
items at 12:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Robbins closed
Public Forum for Closed Session at 12:01 p.m.




. ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION:

President Robbins called for a motion to adjourn to Closed Session at 12:01 p.m.
Motion by Board Member Nicely to adjourn to Closed Session. Second by Board
Member McCarthy to adjourn to Closed Session. President Robbins called for a
vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 4/0.

Board Member Nicely- yes

President Robbins - yes

Board Member McCarthy - yes

Board Member Roberts - yes

0O 000

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

. CALL TO ORDER:

President Robbins opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session
items at 1:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Robbins closed
Public Forum for Open Session at 1:01 p.m.

. RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION:

President Robbins reported the following action was taken in Closed Session: the UNAC
Agreement was unanimously approved, a Leave of Absence Policy & Procedure is to be
created and the Board of Directors received an update on the OPEIU negotiations.

President Robbins called for a vote. A vote in favor of the motion was 4/0.
o Board Member Nicely- yes
o President Robbins - yes
o Board Member McCarthy - yes
o Board Member Roberts — yes

. PUBLIC FORUM FOR OPEN SESSION

President Robbins opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session
items at 1:01 p.m. Hearing no request to make public comment, President Robbins closed
Public Forum for Open Session at 1:01 p.m.

. DIRECTORS COMMENTS:

® President Robbins reported that the Board received Barbara Willey’s resignation letter
effective December 15, 2017 and received a thank you letter for the Christmas Party
from the Mom & Dad Project staff,

» Board Member Roberts wanted to recognize and thank the negotiation team (several
employees) for their time dedicated to negotiations and stated that staff did a great job;
the team ensured that the negotiations was best for the District and employees.

. OLD BUSINESS:
¢ None

. NEW BUSINESS:
* None

. ADJOURNMENT

President Robbins called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 1:00 p.m, Motion by
Board Member Nicely to adjourn. Second by Board President Roberts to adjourn.
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President Robbins called for the vote. A vote in favor of the motion was unanimously
approved 5/0.

o Board Member Nicely- yes

o President Robbins - yes

o Board Member McCarthy - yes

o Board Member Roberts - yes
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Bear Valley Commuuity Healthcare District

Construction Projects 2017

Department / Project Details Vendor and all associated costs Comments nua“:

Staff Restroom 7 Renovated Bathroom Facilites, Carpeteria Complete
Room # 30 Renovated room with funds Facilities, Warren Construction, Complete

from Rotary Mike's Flooring
Fire Riser Installed new Fire Riser and SimplexGrinell In Progress

Nitrogen Generator in Boiler

room
Medgas Panel Installed new MedGas Panel to |FS Medical In Progress

meet code requirements. Old

Panel was failing and

unsupported.
Employee Door Door has failed. Lyman Doors New door will be replaced in
Replacement ' December parts have been

ordered. '

Pyxis Replacement Pyxis equipment is in place and Facilities In Progress

seismic anchors will be installed

soon. '
FHC- Telehealth system Vendor sent new equipment for Installed TV, DVD player & _
installation second Doctor Camera. Also did electrical

drops forequipment. Complete!
ASHRE 188 Risk New Mandate for Hospitals _ ‘ . Evaluated Facilites with CNO,
Management Plan for Forensic Analytical Consulting Infection Control & Facilities
Legionellosis Services Inc.
Updated 12/20/2017

Page 1




Bear Valley Comm%mjty Healthcare District
Construction Projects 2017

Department / Project Details Vendor and all associated costs Comments ﬁuaui
Hospital- Medical Air Compressors is failing and no  |FS Medical Equipment purchased waiting
Compressor longer meets code requirments on OSHPD.

Hospital- Fire Door Repairs |During our latest inspection Facilities Will have to evaluate major
most of our doors were repairs and include in Capital
identified as having deficiencies Budget
Updated 12/20/2017 Page 2
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Bear Valley Commuuuty Healthcare District
Potential Equipment Requirements

Department / Project

Details

Vendor and all associated costs

Comments

LFdALT

Facilities- New SnowPlow
for truck

Facilities would like to purchase
anew plow with modern
controls

N/A

Wil include in next years
Capital Budget

Updated 12/20/2017

Page 1




Bear Valley Commﬁmty Healthcare District
Repairs Maintenance

Department / Project Details Vendor and all associated costs Comments ﬂuauz
Hospita/FHC/RHC/PT Filters Replaced Facilities Complete
Hospital-Fire Door Repairs (Fire Door repairs Facilities In Progress
ER- Lockbox placed on Placed Lock Box in ER to Facilites In progress
thermostat prevent tampering with '
thermostat
Escutcheon Repairs Designed a new larger Facilities In Progress
expansion plate for wear around
escutcheons
Updated 12/20/2017 Page 1










reporting will be a month behind.

Public Health Report
Multi-state cluster of Legionellosis associated with
travel to Anaheim, CA

o 10 confired cases with illness onset dates
ranging from September 17 to 30, 2017
o 9 hospitalizations with one confirmed death

5. Policy Updates

Will work with Kathleen Yerratt to develop C-difficile policy
and algorithm

Proposed changes to
be presented at next
P&T committee
meeting.

6. Safety/Product

None

Continue to monitor
compliance with
approved cleaning
procedures.

7. Antibiotic Continue to monitor antibiotic usage hospital-wide. Informational.

Stewardship

8. Education ICP continues to attend the APIC meetings in Ontario. ICP to share
information at
appropriate
committees.

9. Informational

Legionella Water Plan
o  Will be working with Michae! Mursick this month
and meeting with a company to review plumbing
and facilities structure. Water testing will be done
and a water management plan will be formed.

Informational

Heather Loose, BSN, RN

Infection Preventionist

Date: January 2, 2018




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
41870 Garstin Drive, Big Bear Lake, Ca. 92315

December (4, 2017
MEMBERS Barbara Willey, Treasurer Garth Hamblin, CFO
PRESENT: Rob Robbins, 1% Vice President Shelly Egerer, Exec.Asst,
John Friel, CEO
STAFF: None
COMMUNITY
MEMBERS: None
ABSENT: None
OPEN SESSION

. CALL TO ORDER:

Board Member Willey called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

. ROLL CALL:

Barbara Willey and Rob Robbins were present. Also present were John Friel, CEO, Garth
Hamblin, CFO and Shelly Egerer, Executive Assistant.

. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

Board Member Robbins motioned to adopt the December 04, 2017 agenda as
presented. Second by Board Member Willey to adopt the December 04, 2017 agenda as
presented. Board Member Willey called for a vote. A vote in favor of the motion was
unanimously approved.

¢ Board Member Willey- yes

¢ Board Member Robbins- yes

CLOSED SESSION

. PUBLIC FORM FOR CLOSED SESSION:

Board Member Willey opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Closed Session
items at 1:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make Public Comment. Board Member Willey
closed the Hearing Section at 1:01 p.m.

. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION:
Board Member Robbins motioned to adjourn to Closed Session. Second by Board
Member Willey to adjourn to Closed Session. Board Member Willey called for a vote.
A vote in favor of the motion was unanimously approved.

e Board Member Willey- yes

¢ Board Member Robbins- yes

OPEN SESSION
1




. CALL TO ORDER:

Board Member Willey called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.

. RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION:

Board Member Willey reported no action was taken in closed session.

. PUBLIC FORUM FOR OPEN SESSION

Board Member Willey opened the Hearing Section for Public Comment on Open Session |
items at 2:00 p.m. Hearing no request to make Public Comment. Board Member Willey
closed the Hearing Section at 2:00 p.m,

. DIRECTORS COMMENTS:

e None

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. November 06, 2017

Board Member Robbins motioned to approve the November 06, 2017 minutes as
presented. Second by Board Member Willey to approve the November 06, 2017
minutes as presented. Board Member Willey called for a vote. A vote in favor of the
motion was unanimously approved.

* Board Member Willey- ves

¢ Board Member Robbins- yes

. OLD BUSINESS:

e None

. NEW BUSINESS#*

A. Discussion and Potential Recommendation to the Board of Directors the 2017 Cost
Report:
e Mr. Hamblin reported the following information:
o Would like Finance Committee to recommend to the Board and authorize the
CEQO to sign the document,
o David Perry w/QHR has the report and is reviewing it.
o WIPFLI completed last year’s cost report.

Board Member Willey motioned to recommend to the Board of Directors the 2017
Cost Report. Second by Board Member Robbins to recommend to the Board of
Directors the 2017 Cost Report. Board Member Willey called for a vote. A vote in
favor of the motion was unanimously approved.

e Board Member Willey- yes

¢ Board Member Robbins- yes

B. Discussion and Potential Recommendation to the Board of Directors Travel
Expenses for QHR IT Assessment: Travel Expenses Not to Exceed $2,000.00:
¢ Mr, Hamblin reported that the Board has requested that we complete an IT

Assessment. In the QHR budget, there are funds available to complete the
assessment.
o Cost should be well under $2,000.00

2




o Assessment will take approximately 2 to 3 days.

Board Member Robbins approved a positive recommendation to the Board of
Directors the travel expense for QHR not to exceed $2,000.00. Second by Board
Member Willey to approve a positive recommendation to the Board of Directors the
travel expense for QHR not to exceed $2,000.00. Board Member Willey called for a
vote. A vote in favor of the motion was unanimously approved.

e Board Member Willey- yes

¢ Board Member Robbins- yes

8. Presentation and Review of Financial Statements:
A. October 2017 Finances:

¢ Mr. Hamblin reported the following:
Day’s cash on hand are 211days.
Paid the CT Scanner & Mammo Project.
October has a decline as expected.
ER visits have decreased.
Swing days declined.
SNF patients increased.
Revenue over budget.
Inpatient under budget.
Clinic over budget- continue to see good patient volume.
Operating expenses were over budget,
Loss of the month $95,854.
AR days are at 67.1. Continue working with TruBridge.

O 00000000 O0O0O0

B. CFO Report:
¢ Mr. Hamblin reported the following information:

o Healthcare Reform still unknown. Will continue to monitor.

o Shortage of IV Solution (Saline solution).
o Puerto Rico makes the solution and due to the Hurricane has affected the

distribution of this item.

o Purchasing manager is doing a great job in obtaining the solution.
o This is a nationwide shortage.

Board Member Robbins motioned to approve the October 2017 Finance Report and the
CFO Report as presented. Second by Board Member Willey to approve the October 2017
Finance Report and the CFO Report as presented. Board Member Willey called for a
vote. A vote in favor of the motion was unanimously approved. -

e Board Member Willey- yes

e Board Member Robbins- yes

9. ADJOURNMENT*
Board Member Robbins motioned to adjourn the meeting at 2:23 p.m. Second by
Board Member Willey to adjourn the meeting. Board Member Willey adjourned the
meeting.
¢ Board Member Willey- yes
e Board Member Robbins- yes
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COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

MEMO

Date: 3 January 2017

To: BVCHD Board
From: Garth M Hamblin, CFO
Re: Audited Financial Statements — Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Recommended Action

Accept and approve the Bear Valley Community Healthcare District Audited Financial

Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017 (July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017.

Background

The Finance Committee has reviewed and recommended Board approval of our
District Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017.

There was a question during the Finance Committee meeting about the calculation
of ALOS (Average Length of Stay). | have removed that from the MD&A
(Management Discussion and Analysis) section as | could not easily break out
discharges for acute and swing bed patients to correctly calculate ALOS stay for each.

Conceming the inciusion “DRAFT" watermark in the attached statements, Mr Tucker
has told me the following “we are required to leave the DRAFT watermark on the audit
till approved by the board. After board approval | will promptly provide you with a final

copy’.

Mr. Tucker is scheduled to attend the January 10, 2018, Board meeting to present
Statements to the full board.

Page 1
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JWT & Associates, LLP

Advisory Assurance Tax

1111 East Hernden, Suite 211, Fresne, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: {559) 431-7685

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Bear Valley Community Healthcare District
Big Bear Lake, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
(the District) as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, which comprisci
2017 and 2016, and the related statements of revenues, expenses?
for the years then ended, and the related notes joy

Management’s Responsibility for the Finan

presentation of these financial statements in
fed in the United States of America; this includes
al control relevant to the preparation and fair
p free from material misstatement, whether due to

Management is responsible for the preparation
accordance with the accounting pr genera
the design, implementation '
presentation of consolidat
fraud or etror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

ontained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
s and in accordance with the State Controller’s Minimum Audit
cts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
her the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

financial staternes procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of materral misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
citcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the District at June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Required Supplementary Information

information, although not a part of the basic financial state
Accounting Standards Board who considers it io be an essentia

for consistency with management's responses to our inquin asic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial st ts. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information be -
evidence to express an opinion or provide an

JWT X Associates, LLP

Fresno, California
January 10, 2018




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

The administration of the Bear Valley Community Healthcare District (the Distri
Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial performance of the Dis
June 30, 2017 (FYE 2017) to accompany the financial statements pre
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Numbers 34, 37 4

repared the following
r the fiscal year ended
n accordance with the
is discussion and the
Basis of comparison
for the reporting of financial results of the District for FYE 2017. ;
herewith have been prepared and submitted with an unmodified’a i independent

auditor,
~ Overview of the Bear Valley Community Healthc3 istri its Financial Statements
This annual financial report consists of the audited financ ‘ ements included herewith and the

associated notes to those statements that desc
operations for the FYE 2017, The audited fi
position, staterment of revenues, expenses and ;
+ The statement of net position includes all of t istri iabilities, using the accrual basis of
accounting, as well as any indication as to whi i
expenditures or otherwise desig
*» The Statement of Revenue n Net Position present the results of operating and
non-operating activities d o
» The Statement of Cas d by operating activities, as well as other sources
and uses of cash from 1 i vities, and capital and related financing activities.

ibe the District’s co

Financial Highlights

Change )
2016 2015 2017 2016
assets 427,624 $ 5,855,921 $ 6,563,584 $ 1,571,703 § (707,663
2,506,983 2,074,260 1,984,561 432,723 89,699
: 11,038,559 8,415,234 1,180,639 2,623,325 7,234,595
n 7,634,783 7,019,232 7,504,079 615,551 (484,847)
2,930,000 2,965,000 250,970 (35,000) 2,714,030
Total net position 20,663,983 13,263,740 11,450,948 7,400,243 1,812,792

Excess of revenuesgvercxpenses $ 441285 § 1,812,792 §(1,152,293) $ 2,600,064 $ 2,965,085




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

CURRENT ASSETS

verted into cash in one
1:096,278, was in Cash.

Current assets are cash or other assets that could reasonably be expected (g
year. Current assets increased by $1,571,703during the year. Most of the i
We also saw an increase of $475,705 in net patient receivables,

Current Assets

2017 2016
Current assets $ 7,427,624 : (707,663)
Cash 2,858,405 1,096,278 713,964
Net patient receivables 3,924,581 475,705 (1,642,670)
Other Assets 239,655 {2,6053) 139,864
Assets whose use is limited - - -
Inventory 212,805 34,439 51,708
Prepaid expenses 192,1780 (32,114) 29,471
$ 2,623,325 $ 7,234,555

Investments $11,038,55

Cash and Investments

s short-term liabilities. Excess funds are invested
est bearing fully guaranteed certificates of deposit

The District maintains sufficig

For th i : istrict’s cash and investments increased by $3,723,113. Total days
) & andited financial statements for additional information.

Change
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
¥ 2,861,915 $ 1,762,127 1048163 § 1,099788 § 713,964
$ - s -8 : - -
11,038,559 8,415,234 1,180,639 2,623,325 7,234,595

Assets whose

Investments
Total cash and investments 3 13900474  § 10,177,361 § 2,228,802 § 3723113 § 7,948,559
Days cash on hand 231 187 43 44 144




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

Net Patient Accounts Receivables

cere higher by $475,705.

Net patient accounts receivables at June 30, 2017, as compared to June 30,
; entcompany (outsourced

Management and staff continue to work with our Accounts Receivable
Patient Financial Services / Billing functions) to reduce Accounts R
Days. During the year, we saw only a slight reduction - from 82 to §fid

2017 2016
Net patient receivables 3,924,581 3,448.87

475,705 (1,642,670)

Inventory

2017
Inventory $ 212805 %
The inventory at June 30 2017 is higher th
inventory.

2017 2016
34,439 51,708

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are long t 4 ildi rovements and equipment with a purchase cost of
$5,000 or more and a ugeful’ :

equipment. Capital as
the prior year balance,

Capltal additiots d . during FYE 2017. We have continued to closely monitor capital

Change
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
pment $ 20,351,193 § 19,116,052 $ 18,755,338 $1,235141 § 360,714

Less: accumulated
depreciation (12,716,410) (12,096,820) {11,251,259) (619,590) (845,561)

$ 7634783 § 7,019,232 $ 7,504,079 $ 615551 § (484,847)




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities are short-term debts due in less than one year. At Jung ‘ 017, current labilities

increased by $432,723.

Current Liabilities

2017 2016
Current Liabilities $ 2,506,983 $  432,7239§" 89,699
Current portion of long term deht 35,000 - 35,000
Aceounts payable 1,137,648 571,154 (71,756)
Unearned Income - - (126,667)
Accrued compensation 684,799 (212,951) (50,393)
Third-party payor settlements 649 74,521 303,517
Accounts Payable

Accounts payable decreased by $571,154 from {
_increased to 44.8 from 25.6 at th

Third party settlements

rogram administrative procedures preclude final determination of
the cost reports are audited and settled. Administration is of the

itals are required to charge all patients the same price for a given level of
istrict charges all patients uniformly based on its established charge description
tructure for the services rendered. In addition, all California hospitals are required
to annually file an electronic version of their CDM, also known as the “charge master”, with the Office of
Statewide Health Planning (OSHPD). The District complies with the OSHPD filing requirement; therefore,
an electronic version of the CDM is available from the OSHPD website,




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

483 or 2.7%. The
se in days. Outpatient
increase in Clinic visits.

Gross patient revenue for FYE 2017 increased over the previous fiscal year by
largest increase is seen in Skilled Nursing Facility where we saw a 26.1% igg
Revenue grew with a 1.2% increase in Emergency Department visits and a

2017 2016
Gross Patient Charges
Inpatient $ 2,636,880 § 2440411 0318 28.4%
OQutpatient 43,815,116 43,363,326 6,931 11.3%
Skilled Nursing Facility 2,987,451 2,335,227 27.9% 64,087  2.8%
Total gross revenue § 49439447 § 48,138,964 27% & 4990386 11.6%

Aeute Inpatient Census Statistics
StafTed beds 5

Patient days 835 67  B5% 390 98.0%
Days in the year (1y -03% 1 0.3%
Average Daily Census 02  8.8% 1.1 97.4%
Skilled Nursing Facility Census
Statistics
Staffed beds 21
Patient days 5,620 1,378 26.1% (331) -5.9%
Average Daily Census 15,4 3.8 264% 09 -61%
Discharges 13 (12) 48.0% 12 92.3%
Emergency Depa 10,593 131 1.2% 591 5.6%
Clinic Visits 18,551 3,154 17.6% (612) -3.3%
Ded
A con ifference between gross charges and a contractually agreed-upon payment
rate with thi pically, third-party payors are 1) government programs such as Medicare
and Medi-Ca enit Practice Associations (TPA) such as Heritage Victor Valley Medical Group,

yas “gatekeeper physicians™, and 3) other third-party payors or Preferred Provider
works, which generally include insurance carriers such as Blue Cross, Blue Shield,
Health Net, Aetna, et€.

Contractual adjustments are accrual-based estimates derived from historical reimbursement experience
using remittance advices by payor and by type of account (inpatient, outpatient, or clinic), adjusted for
known exposures, such as payment denials, and are used to reduce the gross charges to the expected
realizable value,




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

Contractual adjustments as a percentage of gross patient charges, excluding prior Hird-party settlement
adjustments, were 49,.9% for FYE 2017 compared to 57.1% for FYE 2016.
FY 2015 was our first year as a Critical Access Hospital (CAH). We contj

impacts cach year,

eview CAH status and

Additionally, deductions from revenue include other uncompensated &a i 'as Charity Care,
Administrative Adjustments, Patient Discounts (principally di : i ‘or private pay
patients who do not qualify for financial assistance) and Emp / ey 1, 2007

the California State Assembly passed AB 774, which requiés
state-mandated means testing process to determine if a pati

#al assistance policy. As of June 30,
porting requirement. :

Total deductions from revenue, including the
was 51.9% for FYE 2017 versus 56.8% for F

Provision for Bad Debts

Change
2016 2015 2017 2016
51 $ 762,369 $ 3,432,376 $ 1,167,282 $(2,670,007)

3.9% 1.6% 8.0% 2.3% -6.4%




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

— Change
217

Deduetions rom Revenue

Contractual adjustments 605 S (2,824,747
Prior year contractual allowances (38,341}
Charity Care 48,764
Administrative (41,130)
Paticnt discount 26,807
Employee discount (21,565)

Bad Debis 762,369 § 1,167,282
27,351,621

Deduciions frem Revenue as a percent of gross revenue

Contractual adjustments 57.1% -7.2%
Prior year contractual allowances -2.6% 0.0%
Charity Care 0.1% 0.1%
Administrative 0.3% 0.1%
Patient discount 0.1% 0.1%
Employee discount 0.1% 0.0%
Bad Debts 1.6% 2.3%
56.8% 4.9%
Net Patient Service Re
Net patient se ifference between gross patient charges and revenue deductions. For
FYE Jun i ¢s revenues increased $2,838,473 or 13.4% higher than the previous
fiscal i hue 1 sed due to increases in volume in Skilled Nursing, ER and Clinic
revey i ¢ experienced in Deductions from Revenue.
Net Pa
Change
2016 2015 2017 2016

revenue $ 23963785 § 21125312  $ 18,129,478  § 2,838,473 § 2,995,834

13.4% 16.5%




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operating expenses in FYE 2017 were $22,625,387 as compared to 320 78 for FYE 20165 — an
increase of 8.7%, Salaries, Wages, and Benefits (which comprised jugt :
Expenses) increased by 7.3 %. During the year we cashed out PTO (P4
300 hours. We also saw increases in retirement cost and health j
Professional Fees, but in increase in Purchased Services with th

a decrease in
b provision of

Change

2017 2016 2017 2016
Salaries and wages $ 9,168,859 40.5% $ 9,613,427 462 ‘ 464% § (444,568) § 384,151
Employee benefits 3,568,108  15.8¢ 60,524 10.9% 11.7% 1,307,584 (58,594)
Total salaries and benefits 12,736,967  56.3 58.1% 863,016 325,557
Professional fees. 1,832,258 8.1% 5 ; ; 8.5% (697,957) 837,092
Purchased services 3,531,964 15.6% ; ' 5,482 10,9% 1,223,666 137,816

Supplies 1 T7.6% 1,730,884 8.7% (117.476) (143,635)
Repairs and maintenance 0.9% 327,241 1.5% 100,341 (112,749)
Utilities 533,430 2.8% 548,858 28% (39,748) 24,320
Rentals and leases 1.2% 243,070 1.2% 36,336 (1,943)
Depreciation and amortization 4.1% 937,973 4.7% (225,570) (92,412)
Insurance 1.3% 266,904  1.3% . 236,638 1.2% 33,448 30,260
Other operatin, 4.5% 372,903 18% 435,628 2.2% 635,853 (62,725}

Total O i _100% 5§ 20,813878 100% _§ 19,872,291 100% _$ 1,811,509 $ 941,587

8.7% 4.7%

Supply cos f gross revenue decreased from 3.3% in FYE 2016 to 3.0% in FYE 2017.

Management com ork with our group purchasing organization (GPO), Healthtrust Purchasing
Group (HPG) to 1 Fopportunities for supply cost reductions,
Change
2017 2016 2015 2017 2016
Supply costs $ 1,469,773  $ 1,587,249 3 1,730,884 § (117,476) $ (143,633)
Supply costs as a percent
of gross revenue 3.0% 3.3% 4.0% -0.3% -0.7%
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

The District’s Board of Directors approved the Budget for FYE June 30, 2 2018) at a general board
meeting. The financial plan for FYE 2018 includes a 5.7% increase in Grass Révenhie and a 4.7% increase
in Net Revenue. Operating Expense is budgeted to increase by 9.2%. Fhe ' udgeted Surplus
of $2,939,870. '

Capital expenditure plans include completion of the remodel | ‘

and new Digital Mammography unit. We also have budge ituregito CPSI, our elect‘ronlc health
record vendor, to meet the requirements of Meaningful
some cosmetic work in the emergency department, and the mig
Current and future favorable operations are helped by the contil
located in the Big Bear Valley area and an allog
received $2,187,524 in such tax revenue. Th

1 of a parcel tax assessed on property
senue, During FYE 2017, the District

BUSINESS STRATEGIES
ospital (CAH} status. Our Analysis after filing

d : 47,514 for the year from CAH status as compared
to payments we would havgze : ve Payment System) Hospital,

In May 2014, the Drxistrict conve :

Revenue cycle manag S tal categies
Adm1mstrat10n is continuifig i rts to impro the revenue cycle process by monitoring provider
contract adminif eivable through our Accounts Receivable Management agreement, and

working y an onsultants.

to monitor and lower operating expenses as possible to improve

« The District is
» The facility was re

ce with applicable state and federal regulations,
assified as SPC-2 under HAZUS to comply with Senate Bill (SB) 1953,

Administration is working to meet the SB 1953 deadline under NPC-3 performance levels that requires
healthcare institutions to be in compliance by the year 2030. Accordingly, the objective is to identify the
full extent of equipment and non-structural items that must meet NPC-3 anchorage requirement. Once a
plan is established develop a timetable to ensure compliance with NPC-3 performance level as quickly as
possible.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRIC'T
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

%’ was effective, The
form to the requirements
ronically their Charity
SHPD policy.

ary, and as required

* On January 1, 2007, Assembly Bill (AB) 774 Charity Care and Discount Paym
District implemented and updated its charity and discount payment policy to ¢
of AB 774. Additionally, in 2008 all acute care hospitals were required t
Care and Discount Payment Policy with OSHPD, The District is in comp)

filed the electronic CDM with OSHPD.
+ The State of California had proposed a reduction in the Disting

refroactively with a “clawback” demand for repayment, Theé 13¢ [ ervices (DHCS)
did announce in August 2013 that rural DP/SNFs would bé@ ‘
provision was eliminated during FYE 2016.

~ HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY 2 ' Y ACT (HIPAA)

~Health [nsurance Portability and

Beginning in 2002, the District began an e 1
equired steps to comply with provisions

Accountability Act (HIPAA) enacted by the fe
of the Act have been put into place within the pe
system have already been installe gtirements, The information system infrastructure

i AA enforcement to ensure continued compliance.

he privacy requirements of the Act, Organizations

Clinical Health (HITECH) Act is part of the ARRA, The HITECH
Medicaid (Medi-Cal in California) EHR incentive programs, which will
cligible professionals and hospitals that adopt and demonstrate meaningful
chnology. These incentives are considered to be of high strategic importance
organizations in the United States to further the federal government’s goal of
achieving health™ orm and improvement of clinical outcomes for the population. The District
implemented its el ¢ medical records system effective April 1, 2013 and attested that it has achieved
MU as of October 2013. We continue to meet the requirements of MU,
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2017

ACCOUNTABLE CARE ACT (ACA)

come on the heels of uncertainty of what will happen with the Healthcar cha g{ n light of likely high
increase in premium cost and some carriers no longer being willing togffer coverage in certain locations.
Congressional efforts to repeal or repair or replace the ACA havefigt been successful. Major healthcare
reform could have a huge impact on California and Bear Valley unity Healthcar Fct.
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Bear Valley Community Healthcare District

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Patient accounts receivable, net of allownaces
Other receivables and physician advances

Assets whose use is imited

Supplies

Prepaid expenses and deposits
Total current assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities
Cutrent portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accru
Accrued payroll and related?
Third-party payor settl
Total current liabilil

Long-term debt, less cul
Total liabilities

See accompanyi

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017

2016

192,178

212,805 -

466,183

=]

7,634,783

$ 9,282,986
750,000
3,448,876
242,260
144,375
178,366
224,292
14,271,155

7,019,232

$ 26,100,966

$ 21,290,387

$ 35,000

S 35,000

1,137,647 566,494
684,799 897,750
649,537 575,016
2,506,983 2,074,260
2,930,000 2,965,000
5,436,933 5,039,260

ed debt 4,669,783 4,019,232
© 15,994,200 12,231,895
20,663,983 16,251,127

$ 26100966 $ 21290387

'to the financial statements
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Bear Valley Community Healthcare District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position

For The Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Operating revenues
Net patient service revenue $ 23,9637 § 21,125312
Other operating revenue 680,717
Total operating revenues 21,806,029
Operating expenses
Salaries & wages 9,613,427

Employee benefits
- Professional Fees
Purchased services

3,568,108
1,832,258
3,531,964

1,469,773

2,260,524
2,530,215
2,308,298

Supplies 1,587,249
Repairs & maintenance 314,833 214,492
Utilities 533,430 573,178
Rentals and leases 277,463 241,127
Depreciation & amortization 619,591 845,561
Insurance 300,352 266,904
Other operating expenses 1,008,756 372,903
Total operating expenses 22,625,387 20,813,878
Operating income (los 3,373,200 992,151
Nonoperating revenu '
District tax revenues 2,301,190 2,234,639
Capital grants and donati 64,441 133,050
Investment 88,397 12,591
Interest expe (96,343) (47,078)
i 2,357,685 2,333,202
5,730,885 3,325,353
(1,318,029) (337,966)
4,412,856 2,987,387
16,251,127 13,263,740
$ 20,663,983 $ 16,251,127

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Bear Valley Community Healthcare District
Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from patients and third-party payers $ $ 23,071,499
Other receipts 563,755
Cash payments to suppliers and contractors (8,270,204)
Cash payments to employees and benefit programs {11,924,346)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 3,440,704
Cash flows from non-capital and related financing
activities
District tax revenue ,301,190 2,234,639
Net change in unearned income _ - {126,667)
Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing
activities 2,301,190 © 2,107,972
Cash flows from capital and related fina
Purchase of property, plant & equipment 235,142) (360,714)
Capital grants and contributions 64,441 _ 133,050
Proceeds from new debt borrowings - 3,000,000
Change in assets whose use 1 - (144,375)
Payments of long-term deb (35,000) -
Interest paid on capitat {(96,343) (47,078)
Net cash provided &
related financing {1,302,044) 2,580,883
Cash flows
Finy - 412,585
(1,318,029) (337,966)
88,397 12,591
(1,229,632) 87,210
and cash equivalents 3,719,603 8,216,769
1,066,217 1,066,217

$ 4,785,820 $  9,282.986

See accompanying notes io the financial statements

16




Bear Valley Community Healthcare District
Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

For The Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activilies

Operating income (loss) 992,151
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation 845,561
Changes in operating assets and Habilities
Patient accounts receivable 1,642,670
Other receivables (116,962)
Supplies (34,439) (51,708)
Prepaid expenses 32,114 (52,374)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 571,153 (71,756)
Accrued payroll and related expenses (212,951) (50,395)
Third-party payor settlements 74,521 303,517

Net cash provided by (used in) operatin 3,950,089 S 3,440,704

See accompanying notes to the




BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: Bear Valley Community Health Care District (the Distr]
under Local Hospital District Law as set forth in the Health and Safety Cy

0 the District generally conform
Organizations, published by the

presentation, transactions deemed by manage By i y entral to the prowsmn of health
care services are reported as operational reve e

The District uses entetpnse fund accountmg Ré
using the economic resources meast

Financial Reporting for Pr
Accounting, as amended, 1]

|6n GASB Statement Number 20, Accounting and
overnmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
the provisions of all relevant pronouncemenis as
ing those issued after November 30, 1989, that

The District applies the provisions of GASB 34, Basie Financial
cussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (Statement

rmat of the financial statements; the inclusion of management’s discussion
n of the statement of cash flows on the direct method. The application of
d no impact on the total net position.

Management’s Di ion and Analysis: Statement 34 requires that financial statements be accompanied
by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the District’s financial activities in the form of
“management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis provided in the
annual reports of organizations in the private sector,
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformj h accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires ma
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities andid
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amiby ! gxpenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimal -

to be continuously invested. Investments in debt securities are ré at market value. Interest, dividends
g f uded as investment income in non-
operating revenves when eamed,

Patient Accounts Receivable: Patient acco
governmental agencies, insurance compames and
regularly reviewing the accountsifi

allowances on their accounti
Significant concentrations g

e payors as to collectability and providing for
ntractual adjustments and uncollectible accounts.
are discussed further in the footnotes.

to year at cost determined by average costs and
The District does not maintain levels of inventory

Assels Ll A d as to use include amounts designated by the Board of Directors
for rep ’ ts and other specific. purposes. Assets limited as to use consist
prim; ] oney market accounts and certificates of deposits on hand with
banki '

Capital As i nsist of property and equipment and are reported on the basis of cost, or in
' i the basis of fair market value at the date of donation. Routine maintenance

extend useful lives drg’capitalized. Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of property
under capital leases are computed by the straight-line method for both financial reporting and cost
reimbursement purposes over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 30 years for
buildings and improvements, and 3 to 10 years for equipment. The District periodically reviews its capital
assets for value impairment. As of June 30, 2017, and 2016, the District has determined that no capital
assets are impaired.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimp

Risk Management. The District is exposed to various r1
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omis
disasters; and medical malpractice, Commercial insurance &
such matters,

Net Position: Net position (formally net asséf
position “invested in capital assets, net of rel3
assets (both restricted and unrestricted), net o
principal balances of any debt borrowings th

improvement of those capital as

placed on assets by cr
other governments or

ts), grantors, contributors, law or regulations of
titutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Net P service revenues are reported in the period at the estimated net
real third-party payors and others including estimated retroactive adjustments
under Teiml with third-party programs. Normal estimation differences between final

rued in previous years are reported as adjustments of current year's net

Charity Care: accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is classified as
a charity patient by raference to certain established policies of the District, Essentially, these policies define
charity services as those services for which no payment is anticipated, Because the District does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient service
revenues. Services provided are recorded as gross patient service revenues and then written off entirely as
an adjustment to net patient service revenues.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2017 and 2016

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con

. These funds are used
S.not directly linked to
ny the year, and are

District Tax Revenues: The District receives financial support from properi
to support operations. They are classified as non-operating revenue as t
patlent care. Property taxes are lev1ed by the County on the Hospitd

the most current property values on record with the County,
levy, lien, mail bills, and receive payments from property o rs dunng the vear.
i

Grants and Confributions, From time to time, the Distri
agencies and private organizations. The District also receive butions from related foundation and
auxiliary organizations, as well as from indivi iva amzatmns Revenues from grants
and contributions are recognized when all e i 'ng time requlrements are met.
These amounts, when recognized upon meet eported as components of the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in

Operating Revenues and Expenses*{ istri ement of revenves, expenses and changes in net
( ting revenues and expenses, Operating revenues
ing health care setvices, which is the District’s

financing costs. Non-opet
to providing health care se

D CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of June 30, 2017 and 20186, the District had deposits invested in various financial institutions in the form
of cash and cash equivalents amounting to $9,424,211 and $1,063,067. All of these funds were held in
deposits, which are collateralized in accordance with the California Government Code (CGC), except for
$250,000 per account that is federally insured.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Under the provisions of the CGC, California banks and savings and loan as
the Disirict’s deposits by pledging government securities as collate
securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits. Calif

ns are required to secure
ket value of pledged

of the District’s total deposits. The pledged securities are held < i i tion
department in the name of the District.

ency funds invested in U, 8.
market value between years are

Investments consist of U.S. Govetnment securities and'%
changes in net assets,

NOTE 3 - NET PATIENT SERVICE RE ) ; URSEMENT
PROGRAMS

The District renders services 4o patichts i al arrangements with the Medicare and Medi-Cal
programs, health maintengiee” i afl preferred provider organizations (PPOs). Patient
service revenues from th i gross patient service revenues.

t is subject to a schedule of maximum allowable charges for Medi-Cal and
to a percey Os and PPOS The skilled nursin g facility (SNF) is reimbursed by the Medi—
Cal progra
incorporated pra d are subject to appeal by the provider.

Both the Medicare Medi-Cal program's administrative procedures preclude final determination of
amounts due to the District for services to program patients until after patients' medical records are reviewed
and cost reports are audited or otherwise reviewed by and settled with the respective administrative
agencies. The Medicare and Medi-Cal cost reports are subject to audit and possible adjustment.
Management is of the opinion that no significant adverse adjustment to the recorded settlement amounts
will be required upon final settlement,
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

PROGRAMS (continued)

Medicare and Medi-Cal revenue accounts for approximately 59% an
reverues for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectlvcly L
Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are extremely complex and su
is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will ¢

G 1nterpretat10
__ %yamatena] amountg the near term.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

The District’s investment balances and average maturities werg s at June 30, 2017 and 2016;

in Years i
to 5 Over 5

Money market accounts
Certificates of deposit
Total investments

Investment Maturities in Years

ir Value Less than 1 1to5 Over 5

520859 $ 7,520859  $ -8 -

144,375 144,375 - -
750,000 - 750,000 -

$ 8415234 § 7,665234 $ 750,000 $ -

The District’s in s are reported at fair value as previously discussed. The District’s investment
policy allows for various forms of investments generally set to mature within a few months to others over
15 years. The policy identifies certain provisions which address interest rate risk, credit risk and
concentration of credit risk.

Interest income, dividends, and both realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments are recorded
as investment income. These amounts were $88,397 and $12,591 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively. Total investment income includes both income from operating cash and cash equivalents
and cash and cash equivalents related to assets limited as to use. Debt securities, when present, are recorded
at market price or the faitr market value as of the date of each balance sheet.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS (continued)

ill adversely affect the
] ater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market 1nterest rates. The District’s exp SU i te risk is minimal

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market intere\

less than 5 years. Information about the sensitivity of the fair vaJui istrict’s investa ts to market
interest rate fluctuations is provided by the preceding schedu :
investments by maturity,

Credit Risk; Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an invest]
of the investment, This is measured by the assignment of a 14
rating organization, such as Moody’s Investor § 's investments in such obligations
minimal credit risk with these

obligations at this time.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial crcdlt riskis t
{e.g. broker-dea]er), the Dlstrlct ; he value of its investment or collateral securities
ct’s investments are generally held by banks or
inimal custodial credit risk with their investments

ich hold the various investments to ensure they

ntration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
issuer. The District’s investments are held as follows: governmental

as required by the terms of a sale and leaseback agreement entered into by the District in January 2017,
Under the agreement the District is required to make annual payments into the Debt Service Reserve Fund
equal to 1/10% of the current annual lease payment. The District established this fund accordingly and at
June 30, 2017 the balance totaled $144,375, See Note 9.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The District grants credit without collateral to its patients and third-p ors. Patient accounts
edit risk for the District
oyemmental agencies.
ividuals involved
entrated credit

follows:

Contracted and other patient accounts receivable consist of vario
in diverse activities, subject to differing economic conditions and do'not represent any

at June 30,2017 and 2016 v

17 2016

Medicare 1,046,991  § 970,569
Medi-Cal and Medi-Cal pending 3,802,028 3,543,604
Other third party payors 3,667,786 3,818,727
Self pay and other . ' 32,719 1.835.887
Gross patient accounts receivable 10,749,524 10,168,787
Less allowances for contractual adj (6.824.943) (6,718,823)

$ 3.924.581 $ 3.449.964

2017 2016
58,006  $ 64,179
26,512 25,520 -
98,312 98,595
56,788 53,966

37 -

b 239,655 $ 242.2
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 were comprised of the followi

Balance at Transfers & Balance at
June 30, 2016 Addition§ une 30, 2017
Land and land improvements $ 532272 547472
Buildings and improvements 9,583,080 ,657,087
Equipment 8,877,216 - 9,614,476
Constroction-in-progress 123,484 - 532,159
Totals at historical cost 19,116,052 - 20,351,194
Less accumulated depreciation - (12,716,411}
Capital assets, net $ 7.634,783
Transfers & - Balance at
Retirements June 30, 2016
Land and land improv % - $ 532272
Buildings and improve; - 9,583,080
Equipment ' 214,603 - 8.877216
123,484 - 123,484
18,755,338 $ 360,714 b - 19,116,052
1251259) $ (845561) $ - (12,096,820)
$ 7,504,079 $ 7,019,232
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 9 - DEBT BORROWINGS

Long-term debt at June 30, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following:

Note payable to the Public Property Fiancing
Corporation of California, original amount of $3,000,000
bearing interest at 3.125%, principal payable annually&
mnterest payable biannually per schedule, maturing 1
December 2055, secured by property, building and
improvements. X $ 3,000,000
Total debt borrowngs - ,. 2,965,000 3,000,000
Less current maturities j . 35,000) (35,000)
Debt borrowings, net of current ma \ ' 30000 § 2965000

Effective January 1, 2016, the Digte i and leaseback agreement with the United States
Department of Agriculture, ' :
Corporation of California, ource Center, The Brenda Boss Family Resource
' the District’s main hospital campus and was put
.4 n accordance with GAAP, the sale and leaseback

" The principal amount borrowed totaled $3,000,000,
% Prmmpal is payable annually on December 1% starting in 2017 and
ule with payments ranging in amounts from $35,000 to $140,000.
11°" and December 1* in an amount equal to the cutrent outstandmg

| interest rate of 3.125% and d1v1ded by two, for a six- month

into service during th
agreement will be treated's
with an annual i

Future principal maturities for debt borrowings for the next five years are: $35,000 in 2018; $35,000 in
2019; $40,000 in 2020; $40,000 in 2021; $40,000 in 2022; and $2,775,000 thereafter.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLANS

e District's employees.

The District has a defined contribution retirement plan covering substantiall

compensation, based on the length of the employee’s service
contributions become fully vested after three years of continu

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

The District is a political subdivision of the state of Californ nized under the Local Health Care
District Law as set forth in the Health and Safe California. The Hospital has been
determined to be exempt from income tax

subject to examination by federal or state authorifiey _ ne 30, 2014, nor has it been notified
of any impending examination and no examinati Process.

progress which represeng
the District’s premises.

Oper Leases. The D Gt has operating leases for office space and various medical and office
equip ental expense ui operatlng leases was $241,127 and $241,127 for the years ended June 30,
2017 an £ ture minimum lease payments for the succeeding years under operating
leases with excess of one year as of June 30, 2017, are as follows: $159,006 in 2017
$102,798 in 2 98 in 2019

Litigation: The Disirtet may from time-to-time be involved in litigation and regulatory investigations which
arise in the normal course of doing business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates
that matters existing as of June 30, 2017, will be resolved without material adverse effect on the District’s
future financial position, results from operations or cash flows.
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BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Workers Compensation Program Thc District is a participant in the Assg n of California Hospital

Act (HIPAA) was enacted August 21, 1996, to ensure health'in
and abuse, guarantee security and privacy of health info
information. Organizations are subject to si
the provisions outlined in the regulations. M
on its operations including future financial cort

rtability, reduce health care fraud
and enforce standards for health
if found not to be compliant with

Health Care Reform: The health care mdustry 18
and local governments These ]a
am participation requlrements and relmbursement
al by physicians, false claims prohibitions and,
of tax exemption. In recent years, governmeni
daf egations concerning possible violations by health
Kickback and anti-referral statutes and regulations,
g, and handling of controlled substances. Violations of these laws and
on from government health care programs with the imposition of

for patient scrvxces, antlt
in the case of tax-exemyl

government programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and various other
ect to varying interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable
ates will change by a material amount in the near term. As a result of
overnmental agencies, various health care organizations have received
notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations,

which, in some in “have resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement agreements.

Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action, including fines and penalties and exclusion from
related programs. The District expects that the level of review and audit to which it and other health care
providers are subject will increase. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge
the District's compliance with these regulations, and it is not possible to determine the effect (if any) such
claims or penaliies would have upon the District.
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Bear Valley Community

Healthcare District

Memo

To: BVCHD Board of Directors
From: Erin Wilson, HR Director
Date: 12/22/2017

Re: Annual Performance Evaluations

The annual evaluation process needs to be revised. The reasons for revisions include:

1. Inconsistent layout/design

2. Labor intensive

3. Insufficient use of resources

4. Room for error in reporting dates

Plan to improve the current process:

1. Review/revise current job descriptions

2. Revise evaluation process to be more streamlined and digital within current HR system
(ADP)

3. Train managers on proper use
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340B Drug Discount Program

"340B is such a poorly understood and non-descript program.
The formal definition is:

The 340B Drug Discount Program is a US federal government program created in 1992 that
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to eligible health care organizations and
covered entities at significantly reduced prices,

If 1 would have named the program, 1 would have called it “Government priced drug
program”’.

Government entities, like the military, have always purchased medications from manufactures at
substantially reduced government contractual prices. In 1992, the federal government persuaded
manufacturers to extend the government prices to certain quasi government/rural/unsustainable
entities. Bear Valley is such an entity, called a covered entity, by virtue of the fact we are a
critical access hospital,

Example: Bicillin LA, a penicillin antibiotic we use in the ER and FHC, costs 19 cents (340B
price) but $13842.21 (on our GPO).

So, the manufactures give the drug away on 340B and have to make up their losses/profits on
non-340B qualified entities. Obviously this creates a false economy that is open to abuse/fraud.

Drug manufacturers are unhappy with the government because they lose money in 2 ways:

o They are forced to sell medications below cost on government contracts and 340B

¢ They are forced to pay rebates to the government for each unit of medication the
government pays for. Manufactures compete to get their drugs on government
tenders/formularies because it increases the scale of production but then have to take a
loss.

The bottom line:

Drug manufactures dislike the 340B program because it erodes their profits

¢ Drug manufacturers have built into the legislation that, if they are forced to partake in the
program, violators will be severely punished and the program may be suspended

* Because manufacturers have to give rebates to government payors for drugs they
purchase, NO 340B DISCOUNTED MEDICATIONS MAY BE BILLED TO
MEDICARE OR MEDICAID PATIENTS. This is referred to as “double dipping”




because manufactures lose money twice, once with deep discounts and another with
rebates.













BEAR VALLEY COMMUNITY HEALTH DISTRICT

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That [ am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Bear Valley Community
Healthcare District (“District”).

That the directors of the above District held a scheduled meeting on January 10,
2018, that a quorum of the Directors were present, and a majority of the quorum
duly adopted Resolution No. 18-453.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate of 1%
Vice President this 10" day of January, 2018.

Bear Valley Community Healthcare District

By:

Gail McCarthy, 1% Vice President
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I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Bear Valley Community
Healthcare District (“District™).

That the directors of the above District held a scheduled meeting on January 10,
2018, that a quorum of the Directors were present, and a majority of the quorum
duly adopted Resolution No. 18-452,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certtficate of
Secretdry this 10" day of Japuary, 2018.

Bear Valley Community Healthcare District

By:

Gail McCarthy, 1* Vice President
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Creating a Sustainable Future for Healthcare Organizations

This dogument contains forward-looking statements that involve assumptions, uncertainties and risks. If such assumptions prove incorrect, or such
uncertainties or risks malerialize, the resulls of this organization could differ materially from those expressed or implied by such farward-laoking
statements and assumplions. In no event should the content of this document be construed as an express or implied promise, guarantes or
implication by or fram the products or services of Quarum or its affiliates or other agents that yaur organization wifl profit or that losses can ar will
e limited in any manner whatsogver. Quorum and its affiliates assume no obligation and do not intend ta update these forward-looking
statements. and Quorum and its affiliates are not responsible for direct, indirect, incidental or consequential damages resulting from any defect,
error or failure to perform,
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Grizzly “Letter to the Editor” submitted 12/20/17
thanking “competent staff at BVCH.

Acute

Swing bed current census=0
Informatics working on roll out of “Thrive” —Evident
upgrade & roll out of Meaningful Use 3.

Continue to
monitor

Skilled Nursing

SNF remains at 5-star rating.

Census is currently at 19 residents.

SNF policies are currently being revised & new
policies developed to ensure compliance with
updated regulations.

Pharmacy is working with DON and Medical
Director to ensure resident medications and MARs
are reviewed and POC in place.

Candlelight Christmas dinner was held, many
residents and families attended.

Residents attended Senior luncheon at Pine
Summit Christian camp

New bathtub options are being reviewed for
replacement tub.

Continue to
monitor

Informational

Surgical Services

Surgical stats are attached.

Orthopedic procedures are being done by Dr. Pautz
one day per week.

Dr. Pautz and surgery staff will are on call
weekends through the winter season for emergency
orthopedic cases.

Continue to
monitor

Monitor surgical
services costs
and FTEs

Case Management

DON and Eligibility Worker are working on referrals
for SNF residents and SWING patients.

Case Management is making contact with hospitals
in surrounding communities to promote swing beds.
Case Management and Eligibility Services are
working on alternative placement for a resident who
needs a higher level of service.

Continue to
monitor

Respiratory Therapy

Working with Department Lead to revise job
description.

Informational




» Physical Therapy

Researching options for purchasing a new
recumbent bike for patient use.

Continue to
monitor

= Food and Nutritional
Services

Dietary provided Holiday meal for employees
working on Christmas.

Dietary hosted candlelight dinner for SNF residents
and families.

Informational

4. Infection Prevention

Hand Hygiene monitoring continues.

Infection preventionist is working with plant
maintenance regarding new regulations for the
hospital water system and risk of legionella
contamination.

POC being implemented with SNF DON to educate
staff on handwashing technique and consistency.

Informational

5. QAPI

Working on Just Culture training and roll out for all
staff and management. Meeting with “Train the
Trainer” team scheduled for 1/9/18.
BVCHD has officially enrolled in the Beta HEART
program,
» HEART readiness assessment was
completed and returned to BETA
= Documents being gathered and prepared for
submission to BETA (policies, Med Stalff
bylaws, culture survey results)
* Tentative date for 1/5/18 for HEART gap
analysis
Next meeting with PFAC scheduled for 1/29/18.
Working with staff to implement “Smoke Free Big
Bear” program (smoking cessation course) with
CARE grant funding.

Informational

Continue process
for Just Culture/
BETA Heart
implementation

Continue guarterly
PFAC meetings

6. Policy Updates

SNF, Lab and Emergency Preparedness policies
are being reviewed.

Reviewed through
P&P Committee

7. Safety/Product

Workplace Violence training is being provided to all
BVCHD staff.

Continue to
monitor new
regulation and
compliance dates




8. Education = BLS Classes scheduled monthly, ACLS & PALS « Continue to
scheduled quarterly monitor

» Splinting in-service completed in the ED

» Smoking Cessation classes being held weekly

* Quarterly nursing skills orientation scheduled for
2018

* Relias (online courses) training assigned through
HR and department managers.

9. Information ltems/Concerns = UNAC negotiations completed- Tentative » |nformational
Agreement reached between BVCHD management '
& UNAC 12/19/17. RNs voted on the agreement
12/21/17- Tentative agreement will be presented to
BVCHD Board of Directors 1/2/18.

* Nurse Leader Rounding program implemented-
each weekday a nurse leader has been assigned to
round throughout the Departments- Risk
Management, Quality Improvement, Informatics,
Infection Prevention, & CNO are participating.

Respectfully Submitted By:
Kerri Jex, CNO Date: December 27, 2017




2017 Surgery Report

Nov-17
Physician # of Cases Procedures
Pautz - DO 2|ORIF Forearm
Pautz - DO 3|Repair Malunion/ORIF Finger
Pautz - DO 1|Excision of Ganglion Cyst
Pautz - DO 1|ORIF Wrist
Pautz - DO 1{AC Reconstruction
Pautz - DO 1|Acromioplasty, Rotator Cuff Repair
Critel - CRNA 3|Hip Injections
Critel - CRNA 1|Shoulder Injection
Critel - CRNA 1|Elbow Injection
Critel - CRNA 1|Thumb Injection
Critel - CRNA 2|Trigger Points
Critel - CRNA 4|LESI
Tayani 7|Catatacts
Total 28
Dec-17
Physician # of Cases Procedures
Pautz - DO 4|ORIF Wrist
Pautz - DO 3|ORIF Ankle
Pautz - DO 2|ORIF Scaphoid
Pautz - DO 1|ORIF Forearm
Critel - CRNA 1|LESI
Critel - CRNA 1iTrigger Point
Critel - CRNA 1|Wrist Injection
Critel - CRNA 1|Knee Injection
Tayani 5|Cataracts
Total 19
Annual Total 238







Marketing:
We are continuing to advertise the Smoking Cessation Class and we are receiving positive feedback.

We are continuing to promote Chiropractic Services; making new RAC cards, ads in the Grizzly and
KBHR radio,
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F756 | Drug Regimen Review, Report Iregular, ActOn | F756 All residents in the facility will receive a 1,/?/18. 12;
SS=F CFR(s): 483.45(c)(1)(2)(4)(5) o .| tirmely Medication Regimen Review (MRR) :
' o .. conducted by the Pharmacy Consultant
483.45(c) Drug Regimen Review. ‘ (PC), noting and directly reporting
483.45(c)(1) The drug regimen of each resident irregularities promptly to the physician.
must be reviewed at least once a month by .a This was initiated angd compieted on
licensed pharmacist. _ 12/26/2017 by the PC and implemented by
. . _ the Director of Nursing. The PC wil work
483.45(c)(2) This review must include a review | in conjunction with the Director of Nursing
_of the resident's medical chart, : to review all resident clinical records and
: . ‘ shail comprehensively raview the efficacy
483.45(c)(4) The pharmacist must report any of all medications used. The Monthly
iregularities to the attending physician and the Pharmacist Review Form will be presented
facility's medical director and director of nursing, to the physician with subsequent orders
and these reports must be acted upon. | and recommendations noted by the
(1) Iregularities include, but are not fimited to, licensed staff. The PC review form will be
any drug that meets the criteria set forth in retained in the clinical record. Full
paragraph (d) of this section far an Unnecessary compliance will be maintained as of
drug. ‘ 1712018 .
(i) Any irregularities noted by the pharmacist 7
during this review must be documented on a Residents 1,3, 4, 5, 6,7,8,9, 10,11, 13,
separate, written report that is sent to the ‘ 14, 15, 18, 17, 18, 19 clinical records -
attending physician and the facility's medical contain a comprehensive MRR conducted
director and director of nursing and lists, ata by the PC and implemented as applicable
minimum, the resident's name, the relevant by the licensed staff and validated by the
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F756 Continued From page 1 F756 .
drug, and the irregularity the pharmacist Director of Nursing. No imregularities were
identified. : noted that required immediate notification
(iii) The attending physician must document in to the physician.
the resident’s medical record that the identified : : ‘
irregulanty has been reviewed and what, if any, All residents in the facility have the
action has been taken to address it. If there is to potential fo be affected by the PC not
be no change in the medication, the attending conducting a monthly Medication Regimen
physician should document his or her rationale Review with prompt notification to the
“in the resident's medical record, - physician of any iregularities that has the
‘ ‘ : potential for adverse reactions. The
483.45(c)(5) The facility must develop and ‘ Pharmacy policy regarding Monthly
maintain policies and procedutes for tHe monthly Regimen Review has been updated to
- drug regimen review that include, but are not include policies and. procedures that reflect
limited to, time frames for the different steps in the need for monthly review. The PC and
the process and steps the pharmacist must take the Director of Nursing meet on a weekly
when he or she identifies an irregularity that basis to review medication regimes, with
requires urgent action to protect the resident. completion of all resident MRRs by the
7 . third week of each month. The Director of
This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced Nursing will assure that all MRRs are
by: reviewed and documented by the physician
) with applicable licensed staff '
Based on interview and record review, the implementation. A monthly audit of all
facility failed to ensure a mofthly Medication charts will be conducted to validate
Regimen Review (MRR) for 18 of 19 residents regulatory compliance and reported to Q!
(Residents 1, 3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10, 11, 13, 14, meeting, Medical Executive Committe
15, 16, 17, 18, 19 and 70) were done., and Board of Directors. S
These failures had the potential to cause unsafe To enhance our current compliant practice,
medication doses and adverse medication the Director of Nursing will in-service all
reactions that can jeopardize medically- licensed staff in the SNF on the MRR
compromised residents affecting a universe of process beginning 12/21/2017, completed
19, ' by 1/4/2018. In addition, a Performance
Improvement Project (PIP) will be initiated
Findings: 1/2/2018 within our QAPI program to
' : further validate ongoing compliance. The
During a record review of the August MRR with results of this project will be reported to our
the Pharmacy Consultant (PC) on December 7, monthly facility Quality Assurance (QA) -
2017 at 2:25 FM, the PC was unable to find the meeting. The Chief Nursing Officer will _
MRR for Resident 70. provide oversight to the project to further
validate compiiance.
During a concurrent record review of the
LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE
EventiD: WDUT#4 ‘Facility ID: CA240000979 L ¥ R R S S
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F756 Continued From page 2- : F756 .
September MRR with the PC, he was unabhle to o Responsible party: Director of Nursing

find the MRR for Residents 1, 4,56,7,8,9, 10,
11,13, 14, 15,16, 17, 19 and 70. '

During a concurrent record review of the -
.October MRR with the PC, he was unable to find
the MRR for Residents 3, 9,13, 14,16, 18 and
19.

During a concurrent inferview with the PC, he
confirmed one resident (Resident 70} did not
have an MRR for the month of August. He -
further stated 16 residents (Residents 1, 4, 5, 6,
7,8,9,10, 11,13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19 and 70} did
not have an MRR for the month of September
and seven residents (Residents 3,8,13,14, 18, |
18 and 19) did not have an MRR for the month
of October.

During a concurrent interview with the Director
of Nursing (DON), she stated she expected the
PC to complete the MRR every month, She
further stated the previous PC failed to do the
MRR on certain months for the residents.

An undated facility policy and procedure titled,
"Medication Regimen Review" indicated, "Bear
Valley Community Healthcare District (BVCHD)
SNF will evaluate the medication regimen of
each resident to promote positive outcomes and
minimize adverse consequences and potential
risks associated with medications... Procedures:
1. The pharmacist will conduct a monthly
medication regimen review monthly... 1.1 The
monthly Pharmacist Medication Review Formis
initiated for each resident and when completed,
preserited to the Director of Nursing... 1.2 This
review includes a review of the resident's
medical chart monthly."
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F812 Continued.From page 3 o LU F812-- : .

F812 Food Procurement, Store/Prepare/Serve- F812 | Dietary services will store, prepare and 17118 12:

SS=F - | Sanitary . L distribute food in accordance with '

CFR(s): 483.60(i)(1)(2) professional standards for food safety.
~ 483.60(i) Food safety requirements. All spices, fruits and vegetables in the
-The facility must - | kitchen have a current label of date the
' . | item was received and the date _
483.60(i)(1) - Procure food from sources " | subsequently opened. All expired items
approved or considered satisfactory by federal, . shall be discarded on or before expiration
state or local authorities. date. The walk-in refrigerator does not
" {i) This may-inelude food items obtained directly contain any improperly stored or labeled
from local producers, subject to applicable State items. .
and local laws or regulations. o S
{ii) This provision does not prohibit or prevent .| All residents in the facility have the
facilities from using produce grown in facility potential to be adversely affected by
gardens, subject to compliance with applicable "~ . | Dietary services, A daily check list of the
safe growing and food-handling practices. walk-in refrigerator has been initiated to
(i) This provision does not preciude residents assure all food Items received are
from consuming foods not procured by the | appropriately stored and labeled. The ,
facility. - o Registered Dietician will conduct weekly
- | audits beginning 12/21/2017 for a minimum
483.80(1)(2) - Store, prepare, distrib'ute and of six months of the walk-in refrigerator to
serve food in accordance with professional s - | validate that all food items are properly
standards for food service safety, . ' stored and labeled. In addition, the
‘ . Registered Dietician conducted an audit
This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced 12/21/2017 and will conduct monthly audits
by: ‘ - | for a minimum of six months of all spices to
assure that they are approptiately labeled
Based on ohservation, interview and record . to indicate date recelved, date opened, and
review, the facility failed to indicate the date not past their expiration date. Al Dietary
opened on the container of the spices, fruits and staff will be in-serviced 01/02/2018 on food
vegetables in the kitchen. : safety related to dating and labeling items
o ‘ recelved, notation of open dates, observing
These fallures had the potential for the growth of expiration dates, and proper storage of dry
microorganisms or contaminate the food served and perishable food items, .
to 19 residents.
To enhance our current compliant practice,
Findings: o o Performance Improvement Projects have
S e - | been initiated for-spice expiration dates,
-.During an initial kitchen tour with the kitchen and storage and labeling of perishable
staff (Cook 1) on December 4, 2017 at 9:40 AM, + | foods within the walk-in refrigerator. These
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F812 " | . Continued From page 4 : F812 : S ,
the following were observed to be opened, ~ | Projects will be incorporated into the SNF
without any date to show when the items were - QAPI program and presented to the facillty
opened: QA committee utilizing individual
dashboards.
1. Kitchen: T : : .
a. One used Montreal steaks spice - Responsible party: Registered Dietician -
b. One used imperial chicken seasoning c. One '
“used ground white pepper
d. One used thyme leaves container
e. One used mustard flour regular
f. One used whole dill weed
d. One used all ground §pice
h. One used paprika spice
2. Walk-In Refrigerator:
a. One whole cabbage sliced into half and
placed inside an opened clear plastic bag
b. One opened bag with cluster of grapes inside
During an Interview with the Cook 1 on
December 4, 2017 at 10:00 AM, she stated the
opened spices and vegetables are still ysed or
served. She further stated any food in the
kitchen must be dated after it is opened.
A facility policy and procedure titled, "Food
Safety, Storage and Labeling", dated, April 27,
2015, indicated, " .... Il. Storage Containers 1.
Any food removed from original contairier will be
properly labeled as follows: a. The name of the
. food item being stored, and the date the food
was removed from its original container and
stored ." :
F880 Infection Prevention & Control F880 | The facility will maintain a consistent 177118 12:
SS=F " CFR(s): 483.80(a)(1){2)(4)(e)(f) : infection Control Program to assure that alj
\ residents live in a comfortable environment
483.80 Infection Control with prevention of the development and
- The facility must establish and maintain an transmission of communicable diseases
infection prevention and control program and infections. The facility will aiso
designed to provide a safe, sanitary and maintain a consistent policy and procedure
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F880 Continued From page 5 o | F880 7
comfortable environment and to help prevent the for hand hygiene for licensed staff in

diseases and infections,

483.80(a) Infection prevention and controi
program. ' ‘
The facility must establish an Infection

483.80(a)(1) A system for preventing,
identifying, reporting, Investigating, and
controlling infections and communicable
diseases for all residents, staff, volunteers,

483.70(e) and following accepted nationai
standards; ' ) '

but are not limited to-

possible communicable diseases or
infections before they can spread to other
persons in the facility;

(i) When and to whom possible incidents of

reported;
(iii} Standard and transmission-based

infections;

resident; including but not limited fo:

(A) The type and duration of the isolation,
depending upon the infectious agent or
organism involved, and

the least restrictive possible for the resident
under the circumstances,

development and transmission of communicable

prevention and contrg| program {IPCP) that must
include, at a minimum, the following elements:

visitors, and other individuals providing services
under a contractyal arangement based upon
the facility assessment conducted according to

483.80(a)(2) Written 'standards, policles, and
procedures for the program, which must include,

(i) A system of surveillance designed to identify
communicable disease or infections should be
precautions to be followed to prevent spread of

- (iv)When and how isolation should be uéed.foré

(B) A requirement that the isolation should be

- | relation to the medication pass. _
Ophthalmic medication administration has
been standardized upon exit of the CDPH
survey team [12/1 1/2017] and completed
by 01/04/2018 to assure that evidenced
based nursing practice standards are
followed. =+ -

Inconsistent Infection Control policies and
Procedures have the potential to affect all
residents adversely. The procedure for
hand hygiene practices has been updated
upon exit of the CDPH Survey team
[12/11/2017] and completed as of
.01/04/2018 to reflect current evidence
| based practice. in addition, the procedure
for the administration of ophthalmic
medications has been updated as well. Al
licensed staff in the SNF will be in serviced
1/4/2018 on these updated infection control
practices. In"addition, the written
procedure will be readily available o
licensed staff,” The Staff Development
Director will coriduct ongoing Infection
Control in-services to staff to reinforce
consistency with these practices.

To promote compliance and validation of
our ongoing compliance, two Performance
Improvement Projects have been
implemented as of 1/2/2018 related to
hand hygiene compliance and consistency
in medication pass as well as ophthalmic
medication administration. These projects
will be incorporated in the SNF QaPI
Program for ongoing validation of
compliance and reported to the facility QA
committee. Dashboards are utilized to
monitor and validate compliance.
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(V) The circumstances under which the facility
must prohibit employees with.a communicable
disease or infected skin lesions from direct
contact with residents or their food, if direct

_contact will transmit the disease; and

(vi)The hand hygtene procedures to be followed
by staff involved in direct resident contact,

483.80(a)(4) A system for recording incidents
identified under the facility's IPCP and the
corrective actions taken by the facility.

483.80(e) Linens,

Personnel must handle, store, process, and
transport linens so as to prevent the spread of
infection, :

483.80(f) Annual review.
The facility will conduct an annual review of its
!PCP and update their program, as necessary.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation, interview and record
review, the facility failed to observe proper

infection control techniques when the Licensed

Vocational Nurse (LVN 1) administererd
medications to Residents 7, 10 and 15 without
performing proper hand hygiene.

These failures had the potential for the spreéd of
infection or contamination affecting 19 medically
compromised residents. - :

Findings:

During the medication pass observation on
December 5, 2017 at 6:20 AM, LVN 1
administered medications to Resident 7 and
Resident 15 by mouth without sanitizing her

F880

Responsible party: Directbr of Nursing
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hands before and after giving medications,

During an intervie
2017 at 7:20 AM,
sanitize her hand
medications,

W'.With LVN 1 0on December 5,
LVN 1 confirmed she must
s before and aﬁer_giving

A facifity policy and
Control®, dated, August 23, 2016, ing
Procedure ... 1.3 Decontaminate ha
having direct contact with patients
e hands after con
tions, mucous m
non-intact skin, and wound dre
are not visibly soiled.”

procedure titled, " nfection

icated, " ..
nds befare
1.7

ssings if hands

Another facility policy and procedure titleg

"Lippincott Procedure Manyal” dated September
18, 2017, indicated! "Itis [name of facility] intent

to use the ‘Lippincott Mar f Nursing Practice’
as the standard for a|| procedures in the nursing
areas of the facility ...InstiMation of Eye

Medications ...6, Wash handgs before instilling
medication." :
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